
 
 
 

Albany County Business Development Corporation  

Board of Directors Meeting 
111 Washington Ave, Albany NY 

August 17, 2023 
8:30 AM – 10:00 AM 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Review of July 20, 2023, Meeting Minutes Jeff Stone 

2. Review of July 2023 Financials Allen Maikels & 
Amy Thompson 

3. Election of Sean Ward as Vice Chairman Jeff Stone 
 

4. Resolution: Establishing and Continuing Standing Committees Jeff Stone 
Of the Board and Appointing Members Thereof 
a. Audit: Marcus Pryor 
b. Finance: Alan Alexander 
c. Governance: Diana Ostroff 

 
5. Resolution: Approving Loan Proposal - Guenther Management  Kevin Catalano 

6. Alliance CEO Report Kevin O’Connor 

7. Other Business     

8. Adjournment Jeff Stone 



 
 

 

Board of Directors Mee�ng Minutes 
July 20, 2023 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT Alan Alexander, Caitlin O’Brien, Diana Ostroff, George Penn, 

Marcus Pryor, Daniel Scarring, Jeffrey Stone, and Sean Ward 
 
EXCUSED DIRECTORS Allen Maikels 
 
COUNSEL PRESENT John Hartzell, and Madeline Kaufman (virtual) 
 
GUEST PRESENT Lucas Rogers 
 
AACA STAFF PRESENT Kevin O’Connor, Amy Thompson, Kevin Catalano, Rosemary 

McHugh, and An�onete Hedge 
 
Mr. O’Connor asked the Board members to complete the Financial Disclosure form and submit 
the form to the State if they have not done so already.  
 
Jeffrey Stone was designated to chair the mee�ng in Allen Maikels’ absence. 
 
Mr. Stone called the mee�ng to order at 8:35 a.m. 
 
Mr. Catalano presented the following proposed slate of officers for the Board of Directors for 
consideration by the Board: 
 

• Jeffrey Stone, Chairperson 
• Allen Maikels, Treasurer 
• Diana Ostroff, Secretary 

 
Following due consideration, Mr. Alexander made a motion to elect the above Board members 
to the above positions and Mr. Ward seconded the motion. Mr. Stone and Ms. Ostroff 
abstained from voting. All those voting on the motion, voted in favor, and the above members 
were elected to serve in the above positions on the Board. 
 
Mr. Stone presented the Minutes from the June 15, 2023 meeting. No corrections were noted. 
Mr. Pryor made a motion to approve the June 15, 2023 minutes as presented. Mr. Alexander 
seconded the motion; all those voting on the motion voted in favor. 
 
Ms. Thompson presented the June 2023 Financial Statements. Ms. Ostroff made a motion to 
accept the June 2023 Financial Report as presented, Mr. Alexander seconded the motion; all 
those voting on the motion voted in favor. 
 



 
 

Ms. Thompson presented the Alliance Voucher for services performed on behalf of ACBDC. Mr. Ward 
made a motion to approve the Voucher as presented, Mr. Alexander seconded the motion.  All 
those voting on the motion voted in favor.  
 
Ms. Thompson presented an investment report detailing how investing in United States 
Treasuries could provide a vehicle to earn interest in amounts greater than ACBDC is currently 
earning at M&T Bank. A proposed Resolution was presented to the Board authorizing investment 
of ACBDC funds in short term United States Treasury Bills.  Mr. Alexander made a motion to (a) 
amend the proposed Resolution to authorize investment of ACBDC funds in an aggregate amount 
of $5,000,000.00, as follows: (i) $2,500,000.00 in United States Treasury Bills with six month 
maturities, and (ii) $2,500,000.00 in United States Treasury Bills with twelve month maturities, 
and (b) approve the Resolution, as amended., Mr. Ward seconded the motion. All those voting 
on the motion voted in favor. 
 
Mr. Catalano presented an update respecting Daigle Cleaning Systems, Inc.’s dispute with RPI 
based on his communications with Mr. Foster, President of the Company.  
 
Mr. Catalano presented a proposed Resolu�on to the Board respec�ng the applica�on of Energy 
Catalyst, LLC (“Energy Catalyst”) to the United States Department of Energy (the “US DOE”) under 
the Heat Pump Defense Produc�on Act Program for grant funds to support expansion of its 
ground-source heat pump manufacturing capacity and Energy Catalyst’s request for the ACBDC 
to provide a leter to the US DOE in connec�on therewith. Following due considera�on, Mr. Ward 
made a mo�on to approve the Resolu�on. Ms. Ostroff seconded the motion.  All those voting on 
the motion voted in favor. 

Mr. O’Connor presented a proposal and Resolu�on to the Board to establish the “Albany County 
Business Development Corpora�on Shovel Ready Site Development Fund.” Following due 
considera�on, Mr. Pryor made a mo�on to approve the Resolu�on. Ms. Ostroff seconded the 
mo�on.  All those vo�ng on the mo�on voted in favor.  
 
Mr. O’Connor presented the Alliance CEO report including a summary of a recent mee�ng with 
an offshore wind supplier in South Carolina.  

Mr. Pryor made a motion to move to adjourn the meeting at 9:40 a.m., Mr. Alexander seconded 
the motion.  All those voting on the motion voted in favor. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
Diana Ostroff, Secretary 
 



Total
ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts

         Restricted Cash

            10220 - M&T MM 3324 ALTECH ACBDC 8,007,357.81  

            10250 - M&T 4113 Al Tech Operating 720,447.96  

         Total Restricted Cash $                                                                          8,727,805.77  

         Unrestricted Cash

            10210 - M&T ACBDC Corp Checking 4105 23,520.92  

            10255 - M&T 3994 CRAF Operating 3.00  

         Total Unrestricted Cash $                                                                               23,523.92  

      Total Bank Accounts $                                                                          8,751,329.69  

      Accounts Receivable

         14615 - Loans Receivable-Al Tech LT 11,030,206.60  

         14620 - Bad Debt Allowance -84,193.00  

         15150 - Accrued Loan Interest 32,262.00  

      Total Accounts Receivable $                                                                        10,978,275.60  

   Total Current Assets $                                                                        19,729,605.29  

   Fixed Assets

      16000 - Furniture & Fixtures 6,588.00  

      16999 - Accumulated Depreciation -6,588.00  

   Total Fixed Assets $                                                                                       0.00  

TOTAL ASSETS $                                                                        19,729,605.29  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable

            20051 - Due to Advance Albany Co Alliance 26,147.97  

         Total Accounts Payable $                                                                               26,147.97  

      Total Current Liabilities $                                                                               26,147.97  

   Total Liabilities $                                                                               26,147.97  

Net Position

      28615 - Trust Assets 15,650,961.00  

      30000 - Net Assets 6,176,905.00  

      Retained Earnings -2,254,907.40  

      Net Operating Revenues 130,498.72  

   Total Net Position $                                                                        19,703,457.32  

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET POSITION $                                                                        19,729,605.29  

Albany County Business Development Corporation
Statement of Net Position

As of July 31, 2023



Total
Operating Revenues

   41000 - Application Fees 500.00  

   44000 - Bank Interest 113,868.20  

   44050 - Loan Interest Earned 200,407.95  

Total Operating Revenues $                                                                                          314,776.15  

Operating Expenses

   50035 - Agency Fee $                                                                                          184,277.43  

Total Operating Expenses $                                                                                          184,277.43  

Change in Net Position $                                                                                          130,498.72  

Albany County Business Development Corporation

YTD July 2023
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position



 Albany County Business Development Corporation
Budget vs. Actuals: 2022 Budget - FY22 P&L 

YTD July 2023

Actual Budget Budget Variance % of Budget
Operating Revenues

   41000 - Application Fees 500.00  2,500.00  -2,000.00  20.00%

   44000 - Bank Interest 113,868.20  746.65  113,121.55  15250.55%

   44050 - Loan Interest Earned 200,407.95  228,936.15  -28,528.20  87.54%

Total Operating Revenues $          314,776.15  $                232,182.80  $                                 82,593.35  135.57%

Operating Expenses

   50015 - Bank Fees 250.00  -250.00  0.00%

   50035 - Agency Fee $          184,277.43  134,750.00  49,527.43  136.76%

   Bad Debt Writeoff 30,000.00  -30,000.00  0.00%

Total Operating Expenses $          184,277.43  $                165,000.00  $                                 19,277.43  111.68%

Change in Net Position $          130,498.72  $                  67,182.80  $                                 63,315.92  194.24%



NH2023-2106082335-779932_1 

ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 

Resolution 
 

Establishing and Continuing Standing Committees of the Board  
and Appointing Members Thereof 

 
RESOLVED, that pursuant to subdivision 4 of Section 2824 of the New York Public Authorities 
Law (the “PAL”), and in accordance with the By-laws of the Corporation, an Audit Committee of 
the Corporation is established and continued, which Committee shall be comprised of the each 
and every member of this Board, who shall serve at the pleasure of this Board; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that pursuant to subdivision 7 of Section 2824 of the PAL, and in accordance with 
the By-laws of the Corporation, a Governance Committee of the Corporation is established and 
continued, which Committee shall be comprised of the each and every member of this Board, 
who shall serve at the pleasure of this Board; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that pursuant to the By-laws of the Corporation, the Chairperson of this Board, 
shall appoint the chairperson of each of the foregoing Committees of this Board.   



ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 

Resolution 
 

Approving Loan Application from Guenther Management Inc. 
 

Whereas, Albany County Business Corporation (the “Corporation”) maintains and 
administers a revolving loan fund to advance employment opportunities and economic 
development within the County of Albany (the “RLF”); and  

 
Whereas, the Corporation is in receipt of an application from Guenther Management Inc, 

dba Adventure in Food Trading, for a loan from the RLF in the amount of $89,800.00 (the 
“Application”); and   

 
Whereas, the Application has been reviewed and deemed complete by the staff of the 

Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation, who have also determined 
that the Application satisfies the purposes and requirements of the RLF; 

 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that a Loan from the RLF in the amount of $89,800.00 

(the “Loan”), to Guenther Management Inc, dba Adventure in Food Trading, or a Real Estate 
Holding Company to be formed (the “Borrower”), is hereby conditionally approved, such Loan 
to be at a rate of interest of 4% per annum, with a five year term, and 20 year amortization, and 
secured by a second mortgage on real property commonly known as 12 Old Myers Road, Town 
of Colonie, Albany County, New York and a collateral assignment of Life Insurance in the full 
amount of the Loan on the life Eric Guenther; and be it further 

 
Resolved, that the Loan shall otherwise be structured and documented in a manner 

consistent with the normal practices of the Corporation, and with the advice of Counsel to the 
Corporation, and be it further 

 
Resolved, that all conditions precedent normally required in the operation of the RLF 

shall be first satisfied by the Borrower and the principals of the Borrower before the Loan shall 
be closed.   
 






























